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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202309195 - Pavement and Bridge Asset Management Software as a Service

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Transportation

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	October 17, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	November 3, 2023

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	November 14, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, RFP Terms*/Acronyms with Definitions (Page 4) 
	What does the ‘*’ mean after Terms? Is this a typo?

	
	Answer

	
	 It is a typo. It has no meaning.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A, pg5
	Is there a reason the current software is being abandoned?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department’s current contract is reaching the end date for the initial period and its extensions.  The Department is required by Maine State law to go to RFP to create opportunity for competition and ensure best value.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A, pg5
	Are there any identified shortcomings in the current software that the DOT would like to remedy via this procurement?

	
	Answer

	
	 Please address your abilities to meet the RFP requirements in your bid.  


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, A, pg5
	How is bridge inspection data currently collected and stored? Will the DOT continue to use existing software for inspection data collection or is the intent to utilize the software procured under this RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	We use Bentley’s AssetWise Inspections SaaS and will continue to do so.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, Section A: Purpose and Background (Page 5)
	The RFP document reads, “The Department intends to continue use of the current provider, Deighton Associates Limited, through Spring 2023 to complete analysis from the Bridge Inspection data and ARAN data that is used to fulfill 2023 Maine DOT work plan development and reporting requirements”. 

Please confirm if Spring 2023 is correct, or should this list another time period?

	
	Answer

	
	It is corrected to read: “The Department intends to continue use of the current provider, Deighton Associates Limited, through Spring 2024 to complete analysis from the Bridge Inspection data and ARAN data that is used to fulfill 2023 Maine DOT work plan development and reporting requirements”.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, Section A: Purpose and Background (Page 5)
	 Is the State currently using Deighton’s desktop product or the web-based version?

	
	Answer

	
	Web-based.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I. A. Pg. 5
	Does the department seek to perform cross asset analysis and optimization?

	
	Answer

	
	 No.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, Part II: Scope of Services to be Provided (Page 8)
	Implementation services says, “support of departmental deployment testing”. However, this RFP is requiring a SaaS solution that the Maine DOT would not need to deploy. If Maine DOT is expecting department deployment testing, please elaborate on what will be required and what must be supported. 

	
	Answer

	
	Please review the State of Maine Application Deployment Certification Policy https://www.maine.gov/oit/sites/maine.gov.oit/files/inline-files/ApplicationDeploymentCertification.pdf, which is also referenced with its link in the RFP in Appendix H PROPOSED SERVICES IT POLICY FORM.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, Part II: Scope of Services to be Provided (Page 8)
	The RFP calls out that “bi-weekly status reporting” is required. Is that twice a week or once every two weeks?

	
	Answer

	
	Once every two weeks.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	RFP Document, Part II  1. c Pg. 8
	In the event the Department requires on-site presence for project-related work activities, how will the expenses associated with travel and accommodation be managed?

	
	Answer

	
	As stated on page 8, all work performed by the Provider will occur offsite. 


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C. f. File 5 - Excel format preferred Pg. 10
	Can the agency kindly provide an Excel version of Appendix D?

	
	Answer

	
	No.  Excel is preferred, Word or PDF are also accepted.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI. #3 Pg. 15
	Based on the department’s historical experience, what is the most reliable estimated target date for project award?

	
	Answer

	
	January 7 is an estimated date for initial notification of RFP award. This can vary by several weeks with the number of proposals received, availability of Bidders for demos, and availability of key State staff.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F Line 1 page 26
	States there are expectations that at least 5 users would use the system. Would there be any additional users that would need to access the application for any other purpose?  If so, what would they need the ability to do?  If not, what are the roles of the 5 users specified?

	
	Answer

	
	Five total users use the system as described throughout the requirements. Two of these users will also have System’s Administrator role (one backs up the other).   


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 1.7: Software Proposed (Page 27)
	For the work environment versus the reporting environment, would it be acceptable to segregate users who can run and modify analyses from users that can perform reporting tasks as long as the data used for scenarios that are eligible for reporting does not change?  Or are two different environments a requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	Different environments are not required as long as the business need is met:  With little to no effort or risk of error,  
· Reporting environment users will use last year’s processed data to run reports, modify data and run data analyses, although the data is relatively stable compared to the work environment. 
· Work environment users will use the current year data to run reports, modify data and run data analyses.  
· Work in either environment must not significantly impact performance of the other environment.   


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 1.7: Software Proposed (Page 27)
	What tools, reporting or otherwise, does the State of Maine expect to connect to a reporting database, and through what types of connection? Additionally, could you please verify that the concept of a reporting DB is a replica DB that would be available for querying, as the RFP stipulates a SaaS service.

	
	Answer

	
	We do not require a replica DB available for querying. We do not anticipate connecting the Reporting Environment to our Data Warehouse or a third-party tool.   From both the Reporting Environment and the Working environment, we anticipate running reports and data extracts that can be printed and/or downloaded to common file types as described in the RFP.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 1.7: Software Proposed (Page 27)
	Can the Department provide additional details regarding the working environment for Reporting needs? Specifically, what is the lag time in data from the Work environment to the Reporting environment (e.g., 3 months, 6 months, 1 year, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department typically refreshes the Reporting environment annually in January from the Working environment after the prior year’s data has been processed and finalized, and before starting loads of the current year’s data.  There may be occasional ad hoc refreshes as well.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 4.1: Inputs (Page 28)
	Is any other asset data coming from somewhere other than ALIM?

	
	Answer

	
	We expect to pull the asset data in from the ALIM. If the selected SaaS required asset data is not available in the ALIM, we would have to determine with the vendor how best to add that data to the proposed system. Data associated with the assets are also loaded from other sources as described.  


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	App F, 3, pg. 28  
	Does the DOT LRS ALIM have an open API available for data consumption?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 5.4: Condition Index Values (Page 28)
	Does the Maine DOT have any non-Federally standard ways of calculating good / fair / poor conditions for bridges (e.g., 6 = good or 5 = poor)?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	App F, 6.1, pg. 29
	The RFP states "The Department must import current pavement conditions data, highway inventory data, and structures data required for optimization from other systems within the Department, prior to analysis runs." Can the DOT provide a list of the systems that require integration and the level of integration required (e.g., once/day or fully dynamic)?

	
	Answer

	
	The data is currently imported from an MS ACCESS database annually, manually. The current system has no integration other manual data imports and exports, and we do not envision building any to the future system.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix F, Section 8, page 30
	Does the State currently have any mapping service(s) that can be used in conjunction with the mapping features or should public data sources (e.g., Google Maps, Bing, OSM, etc.) be used?  

How will the data from this system be integrated into the State’s GIS system (i.e., geodatabase)?

	
	Answer

	
	MaineDOT has a publicly available basemap service accessible via an ArcGIS Server REST endpoint.  The basemap displays MaineDOT road network alignments that can be helpful to users working with road-based data.  Although not a requirement, having the ability to toggle this basemap on along with other public basemaps would be desirable.  The URL is here:

https://arcgisserver.maine.gov/arcgis/rest/services/mdot/MaineDOT_Tiled/MapServer

We are able to integrate data back into our geoprocessing by carrying Route, X, Y coordinates, and ideally Milepoint on the data elements for the data input into the system; as long as we can export the data we need with those four data elements still associated with it, we are good.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Proposed Services Form, Section 11: Implementation Services (Page 31)
	Are there any project deliverables not listed in the RFP that Maine DOT would consider necessary for a successful project? For example, end user training before go-live?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department has tried to be clear in its requirements, and still leave solutions open for the bidders to use best judgement for their proposed solution.  For example, in question 11.2 we ask 11.2. Please describe the proposed user and administrator training for the initial implementation.  We expect that the Bidder will propose the training they feel is fit for successful implementation and subsequent use of the system. 


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix G Line 2 Page 34
	Is this referring to users accessing the application via a desktop client versus a web-based application?

	
	Answer

	
	This describes the current State-issued PCs that the users will use to access the SaaS, which is expected to be a web-based application, although minor client software installations such as a browser extension are acceptable.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix G Line 18 Page 36
	Can the State provide a description of “generations of treatment strategies”?  Would this be related to a treatment decision tree or is it a different software feature?

	
	Answer

	
	Each level of generation seems like a branch of a decision tree since for each triggered treatment in a strategy there may be several possible subsequent treatments (“branches”). But it is not a decision tree. The optimization determines which branches to take. A strategy is a sequence of treatments for an asset over the analysis period. The number of levels for generation of treatment strategies is the level at which point the analysis will stop checking for subsequent treatments for the asset. It can be thought of as a limit to the number of treatments allowed for an asset.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix H Item 1
	The OIT policies page link does not seem to work.  Does it contain the same information as that provided by the linked PDF documents in this item?

	
	Answer

	
	The URL should be https://www.maine.gov/oit/policies-standards (No PERIOD on the end of the URL).   It does take you to the same linked PDF documents, as does the “Policies/Standards” on the bad page that is displayed.


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are there any requirements associated with this RFP for United States based employees or United States based server requirements? From what we understand, all components must be physically located within the continental United States (per Office of Information Technology’s Remote/Cloud Hosting Policy - section 4.2.4.2.6).  

	
	Answer

	
	You have identified the pertinent requirement.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Does the Maine DOT plan to use this software for any additional asset types in the future (e.g., ancillary assets)?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Does the Maine DOT have a defined project team to support this project pre and post go-live? If so, can an organizational chart be provided?

	
	Answer

	
	During the project, the Department will provide an IT Project Manager/Tech Lead and pull in additional technical resources as required; these resources are not typically direct reports.  The    Business Systems Manager is the project business lead, and will eventually hold the roles of Systems Administrator, contract Program Manager, in-house primary trainer, first line of business support, and vendor Customer Support primary point of contract. The small team of system users will be engaged for project input and testing as needed; they do not necessarily report to the Business Systems Manager.  The Business Systems Manager reports to the project Sponsor. The team was formed at the decision to go to RFP.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Please specify if there are any restrictions around third-party tools that can be used for the pavement and bridge asset management system (e.g., Google maps).

	
	Answer

	
	See Appendix F Proposed Services Section 1. Other than that, any third-party tool is subject to State IT Policy, so it must be pre-screened by OIT and be judged reasonably secure, maturely managed, digitally accessible where applicable, and have an acceptable licensing agreement and cost, etc.  
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